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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING ) 
CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION ) 
DIVISION FOR THE PURPOSE OF ) 
CONSIDERING: ) 

APPLICATIONS OF MERIDIAN OIL INC. 

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 

EXAMINER HEARING 

BEFORE: D a v i d R. Catanach, H e a r i n g Examiner 

Oc t o b e r 7, 1993 

Santa Fe, New Mexico 

CASE J I O _ S ^ 4 0 8 4 3 
a n d ( 1 0 8 4 4 

T h i s m a t t e r came on f o r h e a r i n g b e f o r e t h e 

O i l C o n s e r v a t i o n D i v i s i o n on Oc t o b e r 7, 1993, a t 

Morgan H a l l , S t a t e Land O f f i c e B u i l d i n g , 310 Old Santa 

Fe T r a i l , Santa Fe, New Mexico, b e f o r e Deborah O'Bine, 

RPR, C e r t i f i e d C o u r t R e p o r t e r No. 63, f o r t h e S t a t e o f 

New Mexico. 
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I N D E X 

Oc t o b e r 7, 1993 
Examiner H e a r i n g 
CASE NOS. 10843 and 10844 

PAGE 
APPEARANCES 3 

MERIDIAN OIL INC.'S WITNESSES: 

JOHN ZENT 
E x a m i n a t i o n by Mr. K e l l a h i n 5 
E x a m i n a t i o n by Examiner Catanach 9 

PAUL BASINSKI 
E x a m i n a t i o n by Mr. K e l l a h i n 12 
E x a m i n a t i o n by Examiner Catanach 20 

ERIC BAUER 
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A P P E A R A N C E S 

FOR THE DIVISION: ROBERT G. STOVALL, ESQ. 
Ge n e r a l Counsel 
O i l C o n s e r v a t i o n Commission 
S t a t e Land O f f i c e B u i l d i n g 
310 O l d Santa Fe T r a i l 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501 

FOR THE APPLICANT: KELLAHIN AND KELLAHIN 
117 N. Guadalupe 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 
BY: W. THOMAS KELLAHIN, ESQ 
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EXAMINER CATANACH: A t t h i s t i m e w e ' l l c a l l 

Case 10843 . 

MR. STOVALL: A p p l i c a t i o n o f M e r i d i a n O i l 

I n c . f o r a h i g h a n g l e / h o r i z o n t a l d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l i n g 

p i l o t p r o j e c t , an u n o r t h o d o x o i l w e l l l o c a t i o n , a 

n o n s t a n d a r d o i l p r o r a t i o n u n i t , a s p e c i a l p r o j e c t 

a l l o w a b l e , and s p e c i a l o p e r a t i n g r u l e s t h e r e f o r , San 

Juan County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Appearances i n t h i s 

case? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom 

K e l l a h i n o f t h e Santa Fe law f i r m o f K e l l a h i n and 

K e l l a h i n a p p e a r i n g on b e h a l f o f a p p l i c a n t , and I have 

t h r e e w i t n e s s e s t o be sworn. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: A d d i t i o n a l 

appearances? 

MR. STOVALL: C o n s o l i d a t e a t t h i s t i m e ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: T o g e t h e r . 

MR. STOVALL: Not a p a r t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No. 

MR. STOVALL: Do you want t o c a l l t h e o t h e r 

case? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: We w i l l a t t h i s t i m e 

c o n s o l i d a t e t h i s case and c a l l Case 10844. 

MR. STOVALL: A p p l i c a t i o n o f M e r i d i a n O i l 
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I n c . f o r a h i g h a n g l e / h o r i z o n t a l d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l i n g 

p i l o t p r o j e c t , an u n o r t h o d o x o i l w e l l l o c a t i o n , a 

n o n s t a n d a r d o i l p r o r a t i o n u n i t , a s p e c i a l p r o j e c t 

a l l o w a b l e , and s p e c i a l o p e r a t i n g r u l e s t h e r e f o r , San 

Juan County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Appearances i n t h i s 

case? A d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, Tom K e l l a h i n . 

Same appearances. Same w i t n e s s e s . No o p p o s i t i o n . 

Ready t o be ap p r o v e d . 

MR. STOVALL: A c c o r d i n g t o t h e s p e c i a l 

r u l e s w h i c h a r e b e i n g d r a f t e d b u t have n o t y e t been 

adopted? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: W i l l you p l e a s e swear 

i n t h e w i t n e s s e s , Mr. S t o v a l l . 

( W i t n e s s e s sworn.) 

MR. KELLAHIN: C a l l a t t h i s t i m e Mr. John 

Zent. 

JOHN ZENT, 

t h e w i t n e s s h e r e i n , a f t e r h a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y sworn 

upon h i s o a t h , was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Zent , f o r t h e r e c o r d , w o u l d you p l e a s e 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
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s t a t e y o u r name and o c c u p a t i o n . 

A. My name i s John Zent. I'm a p e t r o l e u m 

landman employed by M e r i d i a n O i l I n c . 

Q. On p r i o r o c c a s i o n s have you t e s t i f i e d 

b e f o r e t h e D i v i s i o n as a p e t r o l e u m landman? 

A. Yes. 

Q. P u r s u a n t t o y o u r employment i n t h a t 

c a p a c i t y , have you made a s t u d y o f t h e l a n d t i t l e 

s i t u a t i o n s c o n c e r n i n g t h e s e two cases? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have. 

Q. Have you i d e n t i f i e d , and a r e you p r e p a r e d 

t o t e s t i f y t o t h e examiner as t o t h e o f f s e t o p e r a t o r s 

t h a t may have an i n t e r e s t i n t h e s p a c i n g u n i t t h a t you 

prop o s e t o d e v e l o p w i t h each o f t h e s e two w e l l s ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I w i l l . 

MR. KELLAHIN: We t e n d e r Mr. Zent as an 

e x p e r t p e t r o l e u m landman. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Zent i s so 

q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (BY MR. KELLAHIN) L e t ' s t a k e t h e f i r s t 

e x h i b i t book, Mr. Zent. I t ' s t h e one marked f o r Case 

1084 3. 

A . Yes, s i r . 

Q. T h a t ' s t h e B l a c k Diamond Com 18 #1 w e l l ? 

A . Yes, s i r . 
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Q. Tu r n t o E x h i b i t Tab No. 1 and i d e n t i f y t h a t 

f o r us. 

A. Tab No. 1 i s t h e a p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d by your 

f i r m on b e h a l f o f M e r i d i a n O i l I n c . i n t h i s 

a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. The o t h e r e x h i b i t book i s o r g a n i z e d i n t h e 

same c h r o n o l o g y o f e x h i b i t s ? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

Q. Turn t o E x h i b i t No. 2 i n t h e f i r s t case 

book. What does t h a t p l a t d e s c r i b e ? 

A. T h i s i s a n i n e - s e c t i o n p l a t o f t h e s e c t i o n 

s u r r o u n d i n g M e r i d i a n ' s p r o p o s e d d r i l l s i t e o f t h e e a s t 

h a l f S e c t i o n 18, Township 30 N o r t h , Range 15 West, San 

Juan County, New Mexico. The c e n t e r o f t h e p l a t i s 

t h e e a s t h a l f o f S e c t i o n 18, and i t i s shaded i n a 

da r k c o l o r , w h i c h w i l l be t h e p r o p o s e d p r o r a t i o n 

u n i t . M e r i d i a n has shaded, had t h e d r a f t i n g 

d e p a r t m e n t shade i n a l i g h t e r f a s h i o n t h e o f f s e t t i n g 

o p e r a t o r s s u r r o u n d i n g t h e e a s t h a l f o f S e c t i o n 18. 

Q. How have you d e t e r m i n e d t h e s t a t u s o f t h e 

o f f s e t t i n g o p e r a t o r s t o t h e s p a c i n g u n i t ? 

A. M e r i d i a n r e s e a r c h e d f e d e r a l , s t a t e , and 

c o u n t y r e c o r d s t o d e t e r m i n e t h e l e a s e h o l d o w n e r s h i p i n 

t h e o f f s e t t i n g d r i l l b l o c k s and t h e d r i l l b l o c k f o r 

t h e p r o p o s e d p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . L e t ' s t u r n now t o t h e E x h i b i t 

book f o r t h e B l a c k Diamond Com 8-1. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I n t h e same f a s h i o n , l e t ' s t u r n t o E x h i b i t 

2 o f t h a t e x h i b i t book and have you i d e n t i f y and 

d e s c r i b e what i s c o n t a i n e d on t h a t d i s p l a y . 

A. E x h i b i t 2 i s , a g a i n , a n i n e - s e c t i o n 

s c h e m a t i c o f t h e area around M e r i d i a n ' s p r o p o s e d d r i l l 

b l o c k f o r t h e B l a c k Diamond Com 8 #1 w e l l , b e i n g t h e 

west h a l f o f S e c t i o n 8, Township 30 N o r t h , Range 15 

West, San Juan County, New Mexic o . 

The p r o p o s e d p r o r a t i o n u n i t i s shaded i n 

da r k c o l o r , and t h e o f f s e t t i n g p r o r a t i o n u n i t s a r e 

shaded i n t h e l i g h t e r c o l o r . A g a i n , M e r i d i a n has 

r e s e a r c h e d t h e f e d e r a l , s t a t e , and c o u n t y r e c o r d s f o r 

l e a s e h o l d and m i n e r a l o w n e r s h i p i n t h e o f f s e t t i n g 

o w n e r s h i p a r e a s , and we've i n d i c a t e d t h a t o w n e r s h i p 

below t h e s c h e m a t i c . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I have 

s u b m i t t e d t o you s e p a r a t e c e r t i f i c a t e s i n each case, 

and my f i r m has used t h e n o t i f i c a t i o n l i s t p r e p a r e d by 

Mr. Z e n t . And as o f t h e i n d i c a t e d d a t e , September 15, 

i n b o t h cases, we s e n t c e r t i f i e d m a i l l e t t e r s t o each 

o f t h e i n d i v i d u a l s o r companies shown on b o t h l i s t s . 

Q. To t h e b e s t o f y o u r knowledge, Mr. Zent , 
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has any company o r i n d i v i d u a l t h a t was n o t i f i e d r a i s e d 

any o b j e c t i o n t o you ab o u t M e r i d i a n ' s a p p l i c a t i o n i n 

t h e s e two cases? 

A. To my knowledge, no p a r t i e s have r a i s e d 

o b j e c t i o n t o t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I n a d d i t i o n , Mr. Examiner, I 

am aware o f no o p p o s i t i o n t o t h e s e two cases. That 

c o n c l u d e s my e x a m i n a t i o n o f Mr. Zent. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. Zent , w i t h i n t h e e a s t h a l f o f S e c t i o n 

18, i s t h a t one o r more l e a s e s ? 

A. I t i s two l e a s e s . I f you l o o k a t t h e p l a t , 

t h e e a s t h a l f o f S e c t i o n 18, t h e r e i s a l a r g e numeral 

2 i n d i c a t e d on f i v e o f t h e 40-a c r e p r o r a t i o n u n i t s . 

T h at happens t o be a s i n g l e f e d e r a l o i l and gas l e a s e 

h e l d by Yates P e t r o l e u m C o r p o r a t i o n . 

I n t h e s o u t h h a l f o f S e c t i o n 18 as t o t h e 

s o u t h e a s t q u a r t e r , t h e r e a r e a l s o t h r e e 4 0 - a c r e 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t s t h a t have t h e number 1 d e s i g n a t i o n . 

That i s a l s o a f e d e r a l o i l and gas l e a s e t h a t i s h e l d 

j o i n t l y by M e r i d i a n O i l I n c . and Morgan Energy 

C o r p o r a t i o n f r o m Denver, C o l o r a d o . 

M e r i d i a n has a d r i l l i n g o p t i o n on t h e Yates 

l e a s e h o l d and a r e p a r t n e r s a g a i n w i t h Morgan Energy on 
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t h e t r a c t i n d i c a t e d w i t h t h e number l . 

Q. I n p u t t i n g a p r o j e c t o f t h i s n a t u r e 

t o g e t h e r , do you have knowledge o f what t h e BLM, 

wh e t h e r o r n o t t h e y would have t o approve s o m e t h i n g 

l i k e t h i s i n t e r m s o f p u t t i n g t h e two l e a s e s t o g e t h e r ? 

A. As i n a l l cases where f e d e r a l a c r e a g e i s 

i n v o l v e d i n a s i n g l e p r o r a t i o n u n i t , t h e Bureau o f 

Land Management must approve a c o m m u n i t i z a t i o n 

agreement p r i o r t o p r o d u c t i o n . I n t h e e v e n t o f a 

s u c c e s s f u l w e l l i n p r o d u c t i o n , M e r i d i a n w i l l p r e p a r e 

and c i r c u l a t e a c o m m u n i t i z a t i o n agreement f o r a p p r o v a l 

by a l l w o r k i n g i n t e r e s t owners, a l l l e s s e e s o f r e c o r d , 

and t h e Bureau o f Land Management. 

Q. You have n o t done any p r e l i m i n a r y BLM 

d i s c u s s i o n ? 

A. No, s i r . That i s n o t n o r m a l u n t i l a f t e r 

p r o d u c t i o n i s s e c u r e d . 

Q. Have you had a s i m i l a r t y p e o f p r o j e c t i n 

t h e p a s t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , we have i n t h i s i m m e d i a t e a r e a . 

I n f a c t , i f we l o o k a t t h e e x h i b i t book f o r Case 

10843, b e i n g t h e B l a c k Diamond Com 18 No. 1, on t h a t 

case y o u ' l l n o t i c e t h e west h a l f o f S e c t i o n 20 i s 

shaded. M e r i d i a n c u r r e n t l y has j u s t c o m p l e t e d 

d r i l l i n g a w e l l and i s c u r r e n t l y c o m p l e t i n g a w e l l 
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w i t h a p r o r a t i o n u n i t , b e i n g t h e west h a l f o f S e c t i o n 

20. That case was h e a r d by t h e Commission I b e l i e v e 

i n J u l y o f 1992. The case number and o r d e r escape me 

a t t h i s p o i n t i n t i m e , s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Are you t a l k i n g a b o u t t h e 

Com 20? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, i t ' s Case 

10486. I t ' s o r d e r No. R-9702, and i t was h e a r d by you 

back i n J u l y o f 1992. Here's a copy o f t h a t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

Q. (BY EXAMINER CATANACH) D i d y o u s a y y o u 

have approached BLM on t h a t p r o j e c t ? 

A. Yes. We have a c o m m u n i t i z a t i o n agreement 

t h a t has gone t o t h e Bureau o f Land Management f o r 

a p p r o v a l w i t h i n t h e l a s t two weeks. 

Q. Has t h a t been approved? 

A. No, i t has n o t . 

Q. Do you f o r e s e e any k i n d o f p r o b l e m w i t h 

t h a t ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Now, do we have a s i m i l a r t y p e s i t u a t i o n i n 

t h e west h a l f o f S e c t i o n 8? 

A. Yes. I n t h e west h a l f o f S e c t i o n 8, t h e 

numbers i n d i c a t e d No. 3, t h a t i s a f e d e r a l o i l and gas 
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l e a s e h e l d by EP O p e r a t i n g Company o u t o f D a l l a s , 

Texas. M e r i d i a n has a d r i l l i n g o p t i o n on t h a t l e a s e . 

The acreage i n d i c a t e d w i t h a number 2 i s 

a l s o h e l d by Yates P e t r o l e u m C o r p o r a t i o n . That i s 

a l s o a f e d e r a l o i l and gas l e a s e w i t h a November 30, 

1993, l e a s e e x p i r a t i o n d a t e . Those two l e a s e s w o u l d 

be combined t o f o r m one p r o r a t i o n u n i t v i a f e d e r a l 

c o m m u n i t i z a t i o n agreement. 

Q. You've g o t f r o m EP a f a r m o u t agreement? 

A. I t ' s a f a r m o u t , y e s , s i r . They were 

i n v o l v e d i n our w e l l i n S e c t i o n 20, and we had a 

f a r m o u t on t h a t w e l l . We have a c o n t i n u i n g d r i l l i n g 

o p t i o n f r o m EP on t h e i r a c r eage i n 8. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I have n o t h i n g f u r t h e r 

a t t h i s t i m e . The w i t n e s s may be excused. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s t i m e 

w e ' l l c a l l M e r i d i a n ' s g e o l o g i s t i n t h e s e two cases, 

Mr. P a u l B a s i n s k i . 

PAUL BASINSKI, 

t h e w i t n e s s h e r e i n , a f t e r h a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y sworn 

upon h i s o a t h , was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Would you p l e a s e s t a t e y o u r name and 

o c c u p a t i o n . 
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A. Paul M. B a s i n s k i , s e n i o r s t a f f g e o l o g i s t , 

M e r i d i a n O i l . 

Q. Mr. B a s i n s k i , on p r i o r o c c a s i o n s have you 

t e s t i f i e d b e f o r e t h e D i v i s i o n as a p e t r o l e u m 

g e o l o g i s t ? 

A. No, I have n o t . 

Q. Summarize f o r us yo u r e d u c a t i o n . 

A. I r e c e i v e d a b a c h e l o r ' s i n g e o l o g y f r o m t h e 

S t a t e U n i v e r s i t y o f New York a t B u f f a l o i n 1975. I 

r e c e i v e d my m a s t e r ' s i n g e o l o g y f r o m t h e U n i v e r s i t y o f 

Nevada Reno, Mackey School o f Mines i n 1978. I went 

t o work f o r Chevron i m m e d i a t e l y f o l l o w i n g g r a d u a t i o n 

f o r a number — f o r s e v e r a l y e a r s . Then I worked f o r 

T esoro P e t r o l e u m , t h e n under Grace P e t r o l e u m where I 

was t h e l a s t n i n e y e a r s , and I s t a r t e d w i t h M e r i d i a n 

O i l a b o u t s i x months ago. 

Q. D e s c r i b e f o r us y o u r s p e c i f i c a r e a o f 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r M e r i d i a n . 

A. I'm r e s p o n s i b l e f o r area 4, w h i c h i s 

i n c l u s i v e o f t h e w e l l s t h a t we're g o i n g t o t a l k about 

t o d a y . 

Q. Are b o t h t h e s e w e l l s w i t h i n t h e ar e a 

d e s i g n a t e d o r a f f e c t e d by what i s d e s c r i b e d as t h e 

Horseshoe G a l l u p O i l Pool? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Are you i n t h a t g e n e r a l v i c i n i t y ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Can you t e l l us where t h a t i s ? Where do we 

go t o f i n d i t on t h e ground? 

A. We're a p p r o x i m a t e l y 4-1/2 t o 5-1/2 m i l e s 

n o r t h e a s t o f t h e Town o f W a t e r f l o w . 

Q. Where a r e you i n r e l a t i o n t o t h e power 

g e n e r a t i o n p l a n t up t h e r e i n t h e Four C o r n e r s area? 

A. We're i m m e d i a t e l y t o t h e west o f t h e power 

p l a n t . 

Q. W i t h i n t h i s g e o l o g i c s e t t i n g o f t h e G a l l u p 

i n t h i s f o r m a t i o n , can you g i v e us a v i s u a l p i c t u r e , a 

word d e s c r i p t i o n o f t h e e n v i r o n m e n t t h a t t h i s 

p r o d u c t i o n i s c o n t a i n e d i n ? 

A. We're p r o x i m a l t o Horseshoe G a l l u p f i e l d 

where p r o d u c t i o n has been e s t a b l i s h e d f r o m t h e T o c i t o 

Sands. Those sands e x h i b i t good m a t r i x p o r o s i t y and 

p e r m e a b i l i t y . They're up on t h e Four C o r n e r s p l a t f o r m 

area . 

Our p r o p o s e d w e l l s a r e i m m e d i a t e l y 

B a s i n w a r d o f t h a t p r o d u c t i o n . I n t h i s p o s i t i o n t h o s e 

p o r o u s and permeable sands have become t i g h t e r and 

more s h a l e y ; hence, m a t r i x p o r o s i t y and p e r m e a b i l i t y 

i s qu i t e low. 

The W a t e r f l o w zone, w h i c h i s t h e o b j e c t i v e 
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i n t h e two h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s , i s a w i d e s p r e a d 

c o n t i g u o u s u n i t t h r o u g h o u t t h e a r e a . 

Q. L e t ' s t u r n t o t h e s t r u c t u r e map t h a t ' s 

l o c a t e d b e h i n d e x h i b i t t a b No. 5 i n t h e e x h i b i t book 

f o r t h e Com 18-1 w e l l . L e t ' s use t h a t i l l u s t r a t i o n 

and have you d e s c r i b e t h e s t r u c t u r a l s e t t i n g f o r t h e 

two w e l l s . 

A. We're s i t u a t e d on t h e n o r t h w e s t c o r n e r o f 

t h e San Juan B a s i n i m m e d i a t e l y B a s i n w a r d o f t h e Hog 

Back m o n o c l i n e . The two w e l l s e x h i b i t d i p t o t h e 

s o u t h e a s t o f a p p r o x i m a t e l y 8 degrees i n t h e case o f 

t h e 8-1 w e l l and a p p r o x i m a t e l y 3 degrees f o r t h e 18-1 

we 11. 

The map t h a t we see i n E x h i b i t No. 5 i s 

c o n t o u r e d on t h e t o p o f t h e G a l l u p , and t h e c o n t o u r 

i n t e r v a l i s 100 f e e t . 

Q. My copy o f t h a t d i s p l a y i s c o l o r - c o d e d i n 

t h a t t h e s p a c i n g u n i t s a r e o u t l i n e d i n g r e e n and i n 

p i n k . I s y o u r s marked t h a t way? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What's t h e s i g n i f i c a n c e o f t h a t c o l o r code 

A. The two p i n k boxes r e p r e s e n t t h e o r d e r s 

t h a t we r e c e i v e d f o r e x c e p t i o n l o c a t i o n s p r e v i o u s l y . 

I n t h e west h a l f o f S e c t i o n 20, t h a t was t h e u n i t f o r 

t h e M e r i d i a n 20-1 B l a c k Diamond w e l l , and i m m e d i a t e l y 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
P.O. BOX 9262 

SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87504-9262 
(505) 984-2244 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

2 3 

2 4 

25 

16 

t o t h e n o r t h o f t h a t i s t h e s p a c i n g u n i t f o r t h e B l a c k 

Diamond 17-1 w e l l . 

The two gr e e n boxes r e p r e s e n t t h e 

e x c e p t i o n s t h a t we're s e e k i n g t o d a y . 

Q. Of t h e two cases a l r e a d y a p p r o v e d as 

h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s , you have d r i l l e d t h e No. 20 w e l l ? 

A. T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, t h e o r d e r 

number f o r t h e 17-1 i s g o i n g t o be R-9691, and i t was 

a l s o e n t e r e d by you based upon a h e a r i n g h e l d i n June 

o f 1992. 

Q. What's t h e p l a n , t h e c o n c e p t , t h e o b j e c t i v e 

i n a h o r i z o n t a l w e l l o r w e l l s i n t h e s e s p a c i n g u n i t s ? 

A. The co n c e p t i s t h a t i n t h i s more Ba s i n w a r d 

p o s i t i o n i n t h e W a t e r f l o w and T o c i t o sand pay, where 

you have l e s s m a t r i x p o r o s i t y and p e r m e a b i l i t y , t h e 

v e r t i c a l w e l l s t o d a t e have n o t p r o v e n t o be 

c o m m e r c i a l l y v i a b l e . The c o n c e p t i s t h r o u g h 

h o r i z o n t a l d r i l l i n g t e c h n o l o g y t o t r a v e r s e t h e 

f o r m a t i o n o v e r t h e l a t e r a l d i s t a n c e o f s e v e r a l 

t h o u s a n d f e e t , 3,000 t o 4,000 f e e t , t h e r e b y 

e n c o u n t e r i n g n a t u r a l f r a c t u r i n g w h i c h has been 

r e s p o n s i b l e f o r t h e m a r g i n a l v e r t i c a l p r o d u c t i o n i n 

t h e i mmediate v i c i n i t y t o d a t e . 

By d r i l l i n g t h e h o r i z o n t a l w e l l , a g r e a t e r 
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number o f f r a c t u r e s w i l l be i n t e r s e c t e d i n t h e 

w e l l b o r e , t h e r e b y a l l o w i n g t h e w e l l b o r e t o e f f i c i e n t l y 

d r a i n t h e 320 a c r e s . 

S e v e r a l c o r e s f r o m v e r t i c a l w e l l s i n t h e 

imme d i a t e v i c i n i t y have i n d i c a t e d t h a t f r a c t u r i n g i s 

q u i t e p e r v a s i v e i n t h e W a t e r f l o w zone, w h i c h i s t h e 

o b j e c t i v e f o r b o t h w e l l s . 

Q. I f y o u ' l l t u r n w i t h me t o t h e E x h i b i t s 

b e h i n d E x h i b i t Tab No. 4, and l e t ' s t a l k a b o u t t h e 

i l l u s t r a t i o n f i r s t . D e s c r i b e f o r us what y o u ' r e 

a t t e m p t i n g t o i l l u s t r a t e h e r e . 

A. T h i s i s a c a r t o o n o f t h e g e o l o g i c a l 

s i t u a t i o n t h a t we're a t t e m p t i n g t o d i s p l a y . On t h e 

bo t t o m o f each c a r t o o n , t h e r e a r e some v e r t i c a l 

f r a c t u r e s r e p r e s e n t e d . And t h e c o n c e p t i s on t h e 

l e f t - h a n d s i d e , a v e r t i c a l w e l l has been d r i l l e d and 

no t i n t e r s e c t e d a s i g n i f i c a n t number o f t h e s e 

f r a c t u r e s , whereas t h e h i g h - a n g l e w e l l on t h e r i g h t i s 

d i r e c t e d so t h a t i t s a z i m u t h w i l l be p e r p e n d i c u l a r t o 

t h e a z i m u t h o f t h e t r e n d i n g f r a c t u r e s , t h e r e b y 

e n c o u n t e r i n g t h e maximum number i n t h e W a t e r f l o w 

zone. 

These f r a c t u r e s w o u l d n o t have been 

e n c o u n t e r e d i n a v e r t i c a l w e l l , and t h e r e b y a 

co m m e r c i a l w e l l i s p o t e n t i a l l y p o s s i b l e i n t h i s 
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s i t u a t i o n . 

Q. W i t h r e g a r d s t o a s p a c i n g u n i t , what do you 

prop o s e t o f o r m f o r a p r o j e c t s p a c i n g u n i t ? 

A. We pro p o s e 320-acre s t a n d - u p u n i t s . 

Q. And t h a t would c o n s i s t t h e n o f e i g h t , 

4 0 - a c r e t r a c t s o r s p a c i n g u n i t s w i t h i n t h i s p o o l o r 

s u b j e c t t o t h i s p o o l ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. How wo u l d you pr o p o s e t o c a l c u l a t e t h e 

o i l - p r o d u c i n g a l l o w a b l e f o r t h e p r o j e c t area? 

A. I t i s a s i m p l e f u n c t i o n o f t h e s t a t e 

a l l o w a b l e t i m e s t h e number o f 40's t h a t w i l l be c u t by 

t h e w e l l b o r e , w h i c h i s f i v e , t h e r e b y y i e l d i n g a 400 

b a r r e l a day a l l o w a b l e . 

Q. I s t h a t an a l l o w a b l e r e q u e s t t h a t ' s 

c o n s i s t e n t w i t h t h e p r i o r two o r d e r s e n t e r e d by 

D i v i s i o n i n t h i s a r ea f o r t h e s e t y p e s o f w e l l s ? 

A . Yes. 

Q. L e t s go now t o t h e s c h e m a t i c t h a t ' s shown 

as E x h i b i t No. 3. I t shows a p r o d u c i n g d r i l l i n g 

window w i t h a 330 s e t b a c k f r o m t h e s i d e b o u n d a r i e s o f 

t h e 3 2 0 - s p a c i n g u n i t ? 

A. T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. What i s t h e p l a n f o r t h e w e l l ? Are you t o 

be l o c a t e d a t a s t a n d a r d l o c a t i o n t h e n w i t h i n t h a t 
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s e t b a c k ? 

A. Yes, we w i l l . 

Q. What has caused you to determine where to 

s t a r t w i t h i n the s p a c i n g u n i t and what d i r e c t i o n to 

proceed? 

A. S u r f a c e outcrop work from the nearby 

producing or mining c o a l o p e r a t i o n s from the F r u i t l a n d 

i n d i c a t e b u t t c l e a t o r i e n t a t i o n to the 

no r t h e a s t - s o u t h w e s t , and t h i s o r i e n t a t i o n has 

f r e q u e n t l y been found to i n d i c a t e open f r a c t u r e 

azimuth i n deeper h o r i z o n s . 

Furthermore, the 20-1 B l a c k Diamond w e l l 

v e r t i c a l p i l o t e x h i b i t e d a f r a c t u r e azimuth i n an 

analogous n o r t h e a s t - s o u t h w e s t d i r e c t i o n . Hence, the 

proposed t r a j e c t o r y of the w e l l to the s o u t h e a s t w i l l 

encounter the maximum number of t h e s e f r a c t u r e s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, we propose to 

honor a s i t e boundary setback of 330, which would be 

c o n s i s t e n t f o r a v e r t i c a l w e l l on a 40-acre t r a c t . 

We're s e e k i n g approval f o r unorthodox l o c a t i o n s 

i n s o f a r as the l a t e r a l or the producing i n t e r v a l of 

the w e l l would c u t i n t e r n a l s e t o f f s f o r the 40-acre 

t r a c t s . 

Q. D e s c r i b e f o r us the s t a t u s of the w e l l t h a t 

was d r i l l e d , the 20-1 w e l l . Where do we stand on t h a t 
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w e l l ? 

A. The w e l l i s c u r r e n t l y under c o m p l e t i o n . We 

are r u n n i n g an e m u l s i o n b r e a k e r a t t h i s p o i n t . We 

b e l i e v e we damaged t h e f o r m a t i o n w e l l d r i l l i n g , and 

we're i n t h e p r o c e s s o f c l e a n i n g up t h e w e l l . 

Q. I n yo u r o p i n i o n as a g e o l o g i s t , i s i t 

n e c e s s a r y t o have t h e s e two a d d i t i o n a l p r o j e c t a r eas 

i n w h i c h t o t e s t t h e f e a s i b i l i t y o f h i g h 

a n g l e / h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r f o r m a t i o n ? 

A. Our e x p e r i e n c e has been t h a t one p r o j e c t 

w i l l n o t condemn t h e c o n c e p t s . The g e o l o g y i s f a i r l y 

complex. The d r i l l i n g s i t u a t i o n and c o m p l e t i o n 

t e c h n o l o g y i s s t i l l b e i n g d e v e l o p e d , and one w e l l b o r e 

i s n o t s u f f i c i e n t t o be a b l e t o a d e q u a t e l y e v a l u a t e 

t h e g e o l o g y . Hence, we a r e s e e k i n g a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s 

so t h a t we can c o n t i n u e on our l e a r n i n g c u r v e . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That c o n c l u d e s my 

e x a m i n a t i o n o f Mr. B a s i n s k i . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Are t h e r e s e v e r a l p r o d u c i n g zones w i t h i n 

t h e f o r m a t i o n ? 

A. W i t h i n t h e N i o b r a r a , i n t h e im m e d i a t e 

v i c i n i t y , s p e c i f i c a l l y Horseshoe G a l l u p f i e l d , t h e r e 

a r e two sand members t h a t a r e p r o d u c t i v e . There's an 
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_ULpper T o c i t o sand and a b a s a l T o c i t o sand i n t h e 

l o c a t i o n o f t h e s e two p r o p o s e d two w e l l s . T h a t b a s a l 

sand i s n o t d e v e l o p e d . I t ' s t o t a l l y s h a l e d o u t . 

The upper sand w i t h m a t r i x p o r o s i t y and 

p e r m e a b i l i t y t h a t ' s p r o d u c t i v e i n Horseshoe G a l l u p i s 

q u i t e a b i t s i l t i e r and t i g h t e r . And t h a t ' s our 

o b j e c t i v e f o r t h e s e two w e l l s . 

Q. T h a t ' s what y o u ' r e r e f e r r i n g t o as t h e 

W a t e r f l o w ? 

A. That i s t h e W a t e r f l o w zone. 

Q. Have t h e s e a r e a s been d e v e l o p e d by v e r t i c a l 

w e l I s ? 

A. There have been s e v e r a l v e r t i c a l w e l l s . 

The most p r o x i m a l t o t h e two pro p o s e d h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s 

i s i n t h e n o r t h w e s t o f S e c t i o n 17. I t ' s t h e BMG 

H a r r i n g t o n No. 1. I n t h a t w e l l , f o u r h o l e c o r e s were 

c u t t h r o u g h t h e W a t e r f l o w i n b a s a l T o c i t o s e c t i o n . 

I t d e m o n s t r a t e d t h e t i g h t , f i n e - g r a i n e d , 

sandy n a t u r e o f t h e upper zone i n t h e absence o f t h e 

lo w e r sand zone. F r a c t u r e s were i d e n t i f i e d f r o m t h o s e 

c o r e s , and t h e c o r e s were b l e e d i n g o i l . The w e l l was 

s u b s e q u e n t l y c o m p l e t e d and pro d u c e d 24,000 b a r r e l s o f 

o i l b e f o r e i t s abandonment i n A p r i l o f 1985. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I d o n ' t have a n y t h i n g e l s e o f t h e w i t n e s s . He may be excused. CUMBRE COURT REPORTING P.O. BOX 9262 SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87504-9262 (505) 984-2244 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, we'd c a l l a t 

t h i s t i m e Mr. E r i c Bauer. Mr. Bauer i s t h e d r i l l i n g 

e n g i n e e r f o r M e r i d i a n t h a t ' s r e s p o n s i b l e f o r t h e s e two 

w e l l s . 

ERIC BAUER, 

th e w i t n e s s h e r e i n , a f t e r h a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y sworn 

upon h i s o a t h , was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Bauer, f o r t h e r e c o r d , w o u l d you p l e a s e 

s t a t e y o u r name and o c c u p a t i o n . 

A. My name i s E r i c R. Bauer. I'm a d r i l l i n g 

e n g i n e e r f o r M e r i d i a n O i l . 

Q. On p r i o r o c c a s i o n s , Mr. Bauer, have you 

t e s t i f i e d as a d r i l l i n g e n g i n e e r w i t h r e g a r d s t o t h i s 

t y p e o f w e l l ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are t h e d r i l l i n g programs f o r d r i l l i n g and 

c o m p l e t i n g t h e s e two w e l l s d e s i g n e d i n a s i m i l a r 

f a s h i o n ? 

A. Yes, t h e y a r e . 

Q. Are t h e r e any m a t e r i a l d i f f e r e n c e s between 

t h e two programs f o r t h e s e w e l l s ? 

A. No m a t e r i a l d i f f e r e n c e s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: We t e n d e r Mr. Bauer as an 
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e x p e r t d r i l l i n g e n g i n e e r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Bauer i s so 

q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (BY MR. KELLAHIN) L e t me have you t u r n t o 

t h e l a s t d i s p l a y i n t h e e x h i b i t book, Mr. Bauer. 

We've been w o r k i n g w i t h t h e one f o r t h e B l a c k Diamond 

Com 18-1 . I f you go t o t h e E x h i b i t 6 o f t h a t book, 

i t ' s an i l l u s t r a t i o n o f t h e d e s i g n program f o r t h e 

w e l l . Why d o n ' t you s t a r t a t t h e s u r f a c e f o r us and 

t a k e us t h r o u g h t h e i l l u s t r a t i o n and e x p l a i n how you 

prop o s e t o have t h i s w e l l d r i l l e d ? 

A. Okay. My w e l l p l a n i s t o d r i l l 12-1/4 i n c h 

h o l e t o 300 f e e t , t h e n s e t 9-5/8 c a s i n g , d r i l l o u t 

w i t h mud 8-3/4 i n c h h o l e t o a k i c k - o f f p o i n t n o t e d 

down on t h e i l l u s t r a t i o n o f 3472 — or excuse me — t o 

a p o i n t o f 4120 w h i c h i s our p i l o t h o l e TD; f o r g i v e 

me. And a t t h a t p o i n t we w i l l a n a l y z e t h e b a s a l 

T o c i t o , r u n some l o g s , and t r y t o f i n e - t u n e o u r 

a z i m u t h . 

At t h a t p o i n t , we w i l l p l u g back t o our 

k i c k - o f f p o i n t w i t h a cement p l u g t o 3472, b u i l d a n g l e 

a t 12 degrees p e r 100 f o o t t o 87 d e g r e e s . One a g a i n , 

t h i s i s w i t h mud. And we w i l l s e t our 7 - i n c h c a s i n g 

a t 4197 measured d e p t h , w h i c h i s 3949 f o o t TVD. 

At t h a t p o i n t I w i l l r u n i n t h e h o l e a 
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s t e e r a b l e motor assembly and d r i l l t o a b o u t 88 

de g r e e s , u s i n g an a i r m i s t system and 4-3/4 i n c h 

t o o l s . I w i l l t h e n a t t h e TD o f t h e w e l l , w h i c h i s 

e s t i m a t e d a t 7 7 4 7 - f o o t measured d e p t h o r 4,000 f o o t 

t o t a l v e r t i c a l s e c t i o n , r u n a 4-1/2 p l u g g e d and p e r f ' d 

1 i n e r . 

Q. Once you've d r i l l e d t h e w e l l , d e s c r i b e f o r 

us y o u r c o m p l e t i o n p l a n . What do you p r o p o s e t o do? 

A. Once we d r i l l t h e w e l l , w e ' l l move t h a t r i g 

o f f and move on a s m a l l e r r i g , and i t w i l l be i n 

char g e o f t h e o p e r a t i o n s t o m i l l t h e p l u g s o u t o f t h e 

l i n e r and p u t a c h e m i c a l wash on t h e f o r m a t i o n and 

swab i t . 

Q. Give us a summary, Mr. Bauer, o f t h e 

p r o c e d u r e s used f o r t h e B l a c k Diamond Com 20 w e l l t h a t 

i s c u r r e n t l y under c o m p l e t i o n p r o c e s s . What d i d you 

do when you d r i l l e d t h a t w e l l ? What k i n d o f d e s i g n 

program d i d you use? 

A. The d e s i g n program i s v e r y s i m i l a r t o t h e s e 

18 and 8-1 w e l l s . The o n l y d i f f e r e n c e i s t h e s i z e o f 

p i p e t h a t I r a n . I n t h e 2 0 - 1 , I d r i l l e d a l i t t l e 

l a r g e r h o l e and s e t 7-5/8 i n c h c a s i n g a r o u n d t h e 

b u i l d . I n t h e s e two w e l l s I'm p r o p o s i n g 7 i n c h . 

Those were t h e o n l y d i f f e r e n c e s . 

Q. D i d you e n c o u n t e r any k i n d o f m e c h a n i c a l 
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2_5 

d i f f i c u l t y o r d r i l l i n g p r o b l e m s w i t h t h a t w e l l t h a t 

w o u l d be o f c o n c e r n t o t h e D i v i s i o n Examiner as he 

approaches t h e n e x t two w e l l s and t h e s u b j e c t o f t h e s e 

two h e a r i n g s ? 

A. No, I d i d n o t . There were no p r o b l e m s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That c o n c l u d e s my 

e x a m i n a t i o n o f Mr. Bauer, Mr. Catanach. 

We move t h e i n t r o d u c t i o n o f a l l o f 

M e r i d i a n ' s e x h i b i t s i n each o f t h e s e two cases. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: These e x h i b i t s -- i s i t 

1 t h r o u g h 6, Mr. K e l l a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: 1 t h r o u g h 6 i n E x h i b i t Book 

10843, and t h e same number i n t h e o t h e r case. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: And t h e n t h e c e r t i f i c a t e s 

w o u ld be added as E x h i b i t 7, and I ' l l have them marked 

a c c o r d i n g l y . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t s 1 t h r o u g h 6 

and 7 i n each o f t h e s e cases w i l l be a d m i t t e d as 

e v i d e n c e . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. Bauer, on t h e No. 20 w e l l , how f a r d i d 

you d r i l l t h a t w e l l ? 

A. To a t o t a l v e r t i c a l s e c t i o n o f 3623. 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
P.O. BOX 9262 

SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87504-9262 
(505) 984-2244 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Measured d e p t h was a p p r o x i m a t e l y 7000 t o 8000 f e e t , 

7798, i n f a c t . 

Q. Was t h a t about what you had p r o p o s e d t o do 

on t h a t w e l l ? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. And you propose t o t a k e t h e s e w e l l s a b o u t 

t h e same d i s t a n c e ? 

A. T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I b e l i e v e t h e p r e v i o u s t e s t i m o n y was t h a t 

t h e w e l l b o r e s h o u l d t r a v e r s e f i v e , 4 0 - a c r e u n i t s ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Each w e l l ? 

A. Each w e l l . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I have n o t h i n g f u r t h e r , 

Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That c o n c l u d e s o u r 

p r e s e n t a t i o n i n t h e s e cases, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. There b e i n g 

n o t h i n g f u r t h e r , Cases 10843 and 844 w i l l be t a k e n 

under a d v i s e m e n t . 
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 

) s s . 

COUNTY OF SANTA FE ) 

I , Deborah O'Bine, C e r t i f i e d S h o r t h a n d 

R e p o r t e r and N o t a r y P u b l i c , HEREBY CERTIFY t h a t I 

caused my n o t e s t o be t r a n s c r i b e d under my p e r s o n a l 

s u p e r v i s i o n , and t h a t t h e f o r e g o i n g t r a n s c r i p t i s a 

t r u e and a c c u r a t e r e c o r d o f t h e p r o c e e d i n g s o f s a i d 

h e a r i n g . 

or employee o f any o f t h e p a r t i e s o r a t t o r n e y s 

i n v o l v e d i n t h i s m a t t e r and t h a t I have no p e r s o n a l 

i n t e r e s t i n t h e f i n a l d i s p o s i t i o n o f t h i s m a t t e r . 

I FURTHER CERTIFY t h a t I am n o t a r e l a t i v e 

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL, O c t o b e r 16, 1993. 

DEBORAH O'BINE 
CCR No. 63 
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